
 

 

1902 - Serving Our Community for 120 Years - 2022 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2022 AT 7:00 P.M.  

RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 

 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

 
Board Members General Manager 
Fran Dehn, President Sergio Ramirez  
David Walker, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District General Counsel 
Edward P. Moritz, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member  
  

 
 
 

AGENDA OF BUSINESS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY TELECONFERENCE or ZOOM ONLY 

Pursuant to California Assembly Bill 361, members of the West Bay Sanitary District Board of 
Directors and Staff may participate in this meeting via a teleconference. In the interest of 
reducing the spread of COVID- 19, members of the public are allowed to participate 
telephonically only, and may submit comments in advance by email addressed to 
treese@westbaysanitary.org by 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 26th.     

To participate by telephone or Zoom meeting, public comments can be made by joining Zoom 
meeting at:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83232334152?pwd=Wmk5UlltNXpqaTFNQjVBK1ByNktZZz09 
Meeting ID: 832 3233 4152 Passcode: 302757 
 
Or by phone, call: 1-669-900-6833 Meeting ID: 832 3233 4152 Passcode: 302757 
 
Following receipt of public comment and open session items, the Board will adjourn to closed 
session.  Reportable action, if any, will be available upon inquiry within twenty-four (24) hours. 

NOTE:  The Board may take action on any agendized item unless specifically designated a “discussion” 
item or a “report.” 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2.    Communications from the Public 
 
3.   Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The motion, 
seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. There will be 
no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member of the Board.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting October 12, 2022 Pg. 3A-1 
 

mailto:sramirez@westbaysanitary.org
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83232334152?pwd=Wmk5UlltNXpqaTFNQjVBK1ByNktZZz09


 

 

 
 
4.    General Manager’s Report Pg. 4-1 
 

5.    Consideration to Award Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project to Ranger Pipelines 
Pg. 5-1 

 

6. Consider Approving Proposal and Authorize the General Manager to Enter Into an Agreement for 
On-Call Construction Consultation Services with Freyer & Laureta, Inc. (F&L) for the Bayfront Park 
Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project Pg. 6-1 

 
7. Consider Approving District Treasury Report First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-23 Pg. 7-1 
 

8.  Consider Approving Purchase of a 2022 Ford Mach E to replace Vehicle Unit No. 201 assigned to 
the General Manager Pg. 8-1  

 
9.    Discussion and Direction on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant Pg. 9-1 
 
10.  Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update Pg. 10-1 
 
11.  Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Pg. 11-1 
 
12.  Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant Pg. 12-1 
 
13.  Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed  
       on Future Agenda  
        
14.  Adjournment

The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 
format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 
wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 

in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation. 



1902 - Serving Our Community for over 115 Years - 2022 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2022 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
President Dehn called the meeting to order at   7:00 PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: President Dehn, Secretary Walker, Treasurer Thiele- 

Sardiña, Director Moritz, Director Otte 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Hulsmann, and by Zoom Reese and Condotti  

 Others Present:   Rick Simonson and Dave Hilton HF&H, Evan Boyd –  
      Recology, Eileen - CCR 
 
2.      Communications from the Public: None.  
 
3.      Public Hearing - Annexing Certain Territory Within the West Bay Sanitary District’s On- 
         Site Wastewater Disposal Zone – Lands of Kaveh (1195 Westridge Drive, Portola  
         Valley) 
 

Motion to Open by: Moritz     2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0  Abstain: 0 

Discussion/Comments: None.  

Motion to Close by: Moritz     2nd  by: Otte  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
4. Consider Adopting Resolution Ordering Annexation of Certain Parcels in the Territory  

of West Bay Sanitary District to the West Bay Sanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater 
Disposal Zone Including Certain Determinations, Findings and Declarations of the 
District Board – Lands of Kaveh (1195 Westridge Drive, Portola Valley) 

 
Motion to Approve by: Moritz    2nd  by: Thiele-Sardiña  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0  Abstain: 0 
 
Discussion/Comments: None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3A-1



 
5. Consent Calendar  
 
 

CONSIDERATION OF ITEM(S) REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Discussion/Comments: None.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting September 28, 2022  
B. Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of Certain Bills and 

Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters thru September 30, 2022  
C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – September 2022  
D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – September 2022  
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – September 2022  
 F. Consider Approval of Resolution Authorizing District to Implement Teleconferenced  

        Public Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361  
 G. Consideration of Resolution Consenting to Annexation of Territory to the West Bay 

Sanitary District by the San Mateo County Local Agency Formation Commission – 
1195 Westridge Drive, Portola Valley (079-011-050), Lands of Kaveh  

  
Motion to Approve by: Walker    2nd  by: Moritz Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0 Abstain: 0 

 
6.       General Manager’s Report 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the District is considering 
Engineering Data Software Inc. as a new tax roll billing system to replace the much older 
Computer Optimization of Sewer Maintenance Operations (COSMO) program.  He also 
reported that the Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvements Project bids are due on 
October 18th.  He continued to report there is a Master Plan pre-proposal meeting on 
October 17th.  General Manager Ramirez informed the Board the District will sponsor a 
booth at the Halloween Hoopla on October 29th as part of our outreach efforts. He also 
discussed that the next Board meetings will be on Oct. 26th and November 9th, as well as, 
the Thanksgiving Lunch on November 8th and the Holiday luncheon on December 8th. 
Lastly, he also reported the annual Almanac Newsletter on December 9th will coincide with 
the District’s 120th anniversary on December 10th. The complete General Manager’s written 
report is in the October 12, 2022 agenda packet. 

 

7.       2023 Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Rate Study Draft Workshop and  
          Direction 
 

Discussion/Comments: Rick Simonson of HF&H presented the draft rate study report which 
included a slight increases of rates in 2023 for most residential carts.  

 
8.   Consider Accepting the HF&H Solid Waste Rate Study, Set a Public Hearing for  

December 14, 2022 to Review Proposed Rates for the Year 2023 and Provide Direction 
by Minute Order Regarding the Rate Adjustment and Proposition 218 Notice for a 
Public Hearing      

 
Motion to Approve by: Moritz     2nd  by: Thiele-Sardiña    Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0   Abstain: 0 

Discussion/Comments: None. 3A-2



 
 
9.       Consider Accepting the Performance Merit Pay Program Results from Oct. 1, 2021 to 

Sept. 30, 2022 and Authorize the General Manager to Disburse the Final Payout 
 

Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña       2nd  by: Moritz Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0 Abstain: 0 

Discussion/Comments: Operations Superintendent Robert Hulsmann gave a presentation 
on the Performance Merit Pay Program results. He reported District staff achieved 98% of 
the goals which equals a maximum individual merit payout of $4,900.00 for each regular, 
full-time employee.   

 
10.    Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Consent to the Abandonment of Public  
         Utility Easement at 1715 Bay Laurel Drive, Menlo Park 
 

Motion to Approve by: Thiele-Sardiña 2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0 Abstain: 0 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported this is a public utility easement 
which is not used for a District sewer main.  
 

11.    October 12, 2022 Update Report on District Response to Corona Virus  
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the District’s engineering 
consultant tested positive for COVID-19. It appears no District employees were in close 
contact with the person. 

 
12.     Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported that 8.6 million gallons was 
treated in September and 6.7 MGD delivered. He also reported $200,000 was approved in a 
SRF loan for the Avy Altschul Pump Station along with a $300,000 grant.  

 

13.  Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update 
 

Discussion/Comments: General Manager Ramirez reported the California Water State 
Revolving Fund loan was approved in the amount of $37 million. He also reported an 
additional $15 million was approved for the project from the Water Recycling Funding 
Program Grant. This reflects the estimated $52 million total cost of the Recycled Water 
Facility and distribution system. The Board of Directors were very pleased with the State 
Water Board.   
 

14. Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) 
 

Discussion/Comments: None.  

15. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on  
 SVCW CIP Program and Financing 

 

Discussion/Comments: Director Otte reported the Commission approved a $600,000 
change order for piping to one of the plant’s digesters.  
 3A-3



 
 
 
 
16. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  

 Placed on Future Agenda 
        

Discussion/Comments: None.  

 
17. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:28 PM 
 
 
 
    
Secretary 
 
 

3A-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the GM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager  
 

Subject: General Manager’s Report  

 

1) Administrative:     
  

a. The District will participate in the Menlo Park Halloween Hoopla parade and carnival on 
Saturday, October 29th.  

b. Villalobos and Associates Inc. will begin the flow monitoring and hydraulic engineering 
study on the wastewater flows in every basin throughout the District. Flow Meters are 
being installed this month. The data will assist with the preparation of the 2023 Master 
Plan.      

 

2) Finance:  
a. Finance Manager, Debra Fisher, continues to work with the District’s Auditors.   
b. Staff is reviewing options to replace the District’s outdated database and other software 

with more user friendly software to assist in the preparation of the Tax Roll.  

3) CIP Projects:   

a. Construction Capital Improvement Program (CIP): 

i. The bid opening for the Bayfront Park Sewer Improvements Project was held on 
October 18, 2022 at 2:00PM. Five bids were submitted ranging from $3.1 million 
to $5.5 million. The one and only original bid was rejected by the Board earlier this 
year in the amount of $3.6 million.  

ii. Freyer & Laureta Inc. is coordinating the public sewer main project with the City of 
Menlo Park at the intersection of Ravenswood and Laurel St. The City agreed to 
reasonable paving requirements because they will be paving the area following 
the pipeline repairs.  

iii. Two pipeline segments in an easement at Alberni Street and Menalto Avenue will 
be replaced. The project was approved by the Board at the September 14th 
Regular Board Meeting. 

b. Levee Improvement Project:    

i. United States Army Corps of Engineers’ (USACE) 30 day comment period ended. 
Public comments were minimal. The consultants and staff prepared comments and 
have sent them to the USACE. The District should receive permits by December 
2022 so the project can go to bid by January 2023.  

  

4-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the GM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

 
4) Information Technology (IT): 

  
a. Staff is migrating the Abila Software to MIP Cloud based Abila this should make the 

MicroIX purchase order process more seamless and easier to report from.   
b. Staff will be meeting with Microsoft representatives to discuss Microsoft Office 365 plans 

including their government rate plan.  
 

5) Operations and Maintenance:   
a. Collection System:  

i. Crews are close to being on schedule with the 12 month high frequency cleaning 
list. The schedule consists of all 6, 8, and 10 inch pipes throughout the District and 
over 100 linear miles. These pipes are cleaned every year to avoid Sanitary Sewer 
Overflows (SSOs).   
   

b. Pump Facilities:  
i. The pump crews and the Operations Superintendent continue to evaluate the 

telemetry system for the pump stations. The current ISAC System has been in 
place for over twenty years and will no longer be supported. The system uses 
telephone lines and dial-up modems to communicate alarms.   
 

c. Training: 
i. Staff will receive training on the updated Sewer System Management Plan 

approved by the Board of Directors on September 28, 2022.  
    

6) Water Quality: 
a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 

i. Staff conducted flow analysis for the Avy Altschul Pump Station project to study 
the flows now that most people have returned to work after the pandemic. Flows 
appear to be down to 40,000 to 60,000 per day rather than 90,000 per day in 
2021. SHGCC was made aware of the findings at the October 11, 2022 O&M 
meeting.      

ii. The State’s SRF program has added the Avy Altschul Pump Station to its Intended 
Use Plan and is now on the fundable list due to its water resiliency component.      
 

b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  
i. The State’s SRF program has added the Bayfront Reclaimed Water Facility project 

to its Intended Use Plan. The initial approval is for $52 million.  
ii. Staff met with Signature Group over the MOU to deliver recycled water to the 

Willow Village Project which has gained momentum in recent days. We should 
begin the Project Management and 30% design shortly.  

iii. The City of Menlo Park Staff will bring the Recycled Water Purveyor MOU to the 
City Council in November. This will establish the District as the reclaimed water 
provider for the Bayfront Recycled Water Facility within the City’s service area. 

  
c. Woodside Recycled Water Facility (BRWF): 

i. The kickoff meeting for the Woodside Recycled Water Facility feasibility was held 
on September 22, 2022. Several options will be considered including reclaimed 
water supply from Silicon Valley Clean Water and Redwood City.  

 

4-2



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the GM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

7) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. The new electric vehicle has arrived at Towne Ford in Redwood City. After 
speaking with the dealership about leasing, the lease options were not favorable.  

 
8) Personnel: 

i. The recruitment for the Project Manager position is underway. To date we have 
received several applications.  
 

9) Upcoming Events:  
a. Next Regular Board Meetings: Wednesdays, October 28th and November 9th.  

b. PMPP Luncheon: Tuesday, November 8th 

c. End of Year Holiday Luncheon: Thursday, December 8th.  

 

10) Misc. Items: 
a. LAFCo: Talks with San Mateo County and LAFCo regarding the divestiture of the Solid 

Waste Franchise have begun.  
b. West Bay: The District has experienced 2 sanitary sewer overflow (SSO) in 2022.    

c. Town of Los Altos Hills: Crews continue to clean and video inspect the Town’s system. 

d. Town of Woodside: Crews will be cleaning the entire system for the Town at the end of 
the year.     

 
 

4-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

4-4



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Consideration to Award Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer 

Improvement Project to Ranger Pipelines Incorporated  
 

 
 
Background  

The entrance of Bayfront Park in Menlo Park is the location of significant upcoming 
projects. Two major diversion projects were performed earlier this year. They included 
the Bayfront Canal/Atherton Channel Project and the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration 
Project. In addition to this, the City of Menlo Park is currently in the design phase of 
improvements to the park’s entrance.  
 
The District has a need for significant work within this same area.  The work includes 
the rerouting of three trunk sewer pipelines for the benefit of a future influent pump 
station. This future influent pump station will pump to the Bayfront Recycled Water 
Facility at the Flow Equalization and Resource Recovery Facility (FERRF). The other 
significant work includes replacing portions of the 30-inch and 36-inch sewer main along 
Bayfront Expressway at the front of the park entrance. These segments were 
discovered to be in poor condition during the District’s large-diameter CCTV project.  
 
Coordination on these major projects has greatly benefitted all agencies involved and 
the community as a whole. The District has contracted engineering, surveying, and 
design services from Freyer & Laureta, Inc. for the needed work. The engineer plan is to 
aligning all pipelines in order to avoid future disruption of the City’s improvements to the 
Park entrance area and beyond drainage improvement recently installed near the park’s 
entrance. 
 
Analysis  

The anticipated cost for construction of the project was approximately $2,855,000.00. 
The bid opening for this project was on October 18, 2022 at 2:00 PM. It is understood 
that the project shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. The District received 
a total of five (5) bids, which were as follows: 
  

5-1



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

 
 
 
Bidder   City Bid Total   
Ranger Pipelines, Inc.   SF  $3,130,113 
JMB Construction, Inc.   So. SF  $3,589,305 
Precision Engineering, Inc.   SF  $3,863,525 
Power Engineering Construction Co. Alameda  $4,274,377 
Anvil Builders, Inc.   Emeryville $5,486,750 
 

 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 

The Capital Assets Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 has an approved budget for 
Pipeline Replacement and Rehabilitation Construction for Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements of $1.25 million in addition to $1.25 million for Reclaimed Water Pipelines 
for a total of $2.5 million. The lowest responsible bid is $3,130,113.00.  
 
In addition to the $630,113.00 shortfall, staff is requesting the appropriation of 
approximately 15% contingency (10% for additional work and 5% for construction 
support services). The additional 15% contingency is estimated at $469,516.95. The 
total project amount requested is $3,599,629.95. 

The additional $1,099,629.95 will be used out of the Recycled Water Cash Flow 
Reserves of $2,348,647 currently in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) with the 
California State Treasurer’s Office.   

Recommendation  

The General Manager recommends that the Board: 1) adopt the attached Resolution 
and authorize the General Manager to award the contract for the Bayfront Park Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements Project to the low bidder, Ranger Pipeline Inc. of San Francisco 
for the amount of $3,130,113, which includes the recycled water pipelines; 2) apportion 
an additional $469,516.95 (15%) for contingency for a total project amount of 
$3,599,629.95. 
 
Attachment:  Resolution 
   
 

 

5-2



 RESOLUTION NO.             (2022) 
  
RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE BAYFRONT 
PARK SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT TO RANGER PIPELINES 
INCORPORATED AND ALLOCATE FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION  
 
 
 *****  

WHEREAS, Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project plans and 
specifications were prepared by Freyer & Laureta, Inc. of San Mateo, California, 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, Ranger Pipelines is the lowest bidder for the project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there was no irregularity or material defect in Ranger Pipelines’ bid  
 package, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ranger Pipelines’ base bid amount was $3,130,113.00 and 
 
 WHEREAS, this was the lowest responsible and responsive base bid, and 
 

WHEREAS, based on available funds, the Bid be awarded to Ranger Pipelines for 
$3,130,113.00, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Capital Assets Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 for this project 
was proposed for $2,500,000.00; however, $3,599,629.95 is now allocated to this 
project.  

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the District Board of the West Bay 
Sanitary District, County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby award a 
construction contract to Ranger Pipelines in the amount of $3,130,113.00 for the 
Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project and, subject to review and 
approval as to form by District’s General Counsel, authorizes the General Manager to 
execute the construction contract, and allocate an additional $469,516.95 for 
construction contingencies and construction support services out of the Recycled Water 
Cash Flow Reserves. 
.   
  
  

5-3



 
 *****  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
regular meeting thereof held on the 26th day of October, 2022, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:   
 
 Absent:  
 
 Abstain:  
       

 
 
____________________________________ 

      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 
 

5-4



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Approving Proposal and Authorize the General 

Manager to Enter Into an Agreement for On-Call Construction 
Consultation Services with Freyer & Laureta, Inc. (F&L) for the 
Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project 

 

 
Background 
 
Construction projects publicly bid by the District require the consultation of the design 
engineer to assist the District in obtaining construction work that is in substantial 
conformance with the project contract documents. Furthermore, the District’s 
Construction Inspector may need additional help during the construction of Bayfront 
Park Sewer Improvement project. The Construction Inspector has other ongoing 
obligations that require inspections such as lateral and sewer main extensions (Class 3 
permits).   F&L has prepared a proposal for assistance through construction which 
includes:  

 Providing interpretation of contract documents to address contractor Requests 
for Information, assisting in the preparation of change orders, reviewing extra 
work requests, and reviewing shop drawings and other contractor submittals. 

 Coordination with the contractor. 

 Coordinating with the City of Menlo Park, Caltrans, SVCW, and Cargill. 

 Preparing Record Drawings at the end of the project. 

 Attending meetings with the Contractor, as requested by the District. 

 Providing construction observation services on an as-needed, on-call basis. 

 Providing construction contract and contractor payment coordination. 

 

Analysis 
Pursuant to the Professional Consultants Selection Policy, the policy states the General 
Manager may approve any contract for Professional Services less than $75,000 and 
less than $100,000 if budgeted.  The policy also states the District Board must review 
and approve any contract for Professional Services to any firm to which the District has 
awarded an aggregate of $300,000 in Consulting Agreements within the preceding 12-

6-1



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

month period regardless of the amount of the contracts/agreements/amendments. The 
District has awarded an aggregate amount of $630,095 to Freyer & Laureta, Inc. within 
the last 12 months. This includes staff augmentation engineering services and an 
extension to the levee permitting agreement.    
 

Fiscal Impact  
The Capital Assets Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 has an approved budget for 
Pipeline Replacement and Rehabilitation Construction for Bayfront Park Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements of $1.25 million in addition to $1.25 million for Reclaimed Water Pipelines 
for a total of $2.5 million. The total bid for construction for this project is $3,130,113.   
 
The proposed agreement for On-Call Construction Consultation Services with F&L is 
not to exceed $70,000.00 without District approval. 
 
Recommendation  
The General Manager recommends the Board approve the proposal and authorize the 
execution of an agreement with Freyer & Laureta Inc. for On-Call Construction 
Consultation Services for $70,000.00.  
 
Attachment:  Freyer & Laureta, Inc. Proposal dated October 20, 2022. 
 

6-2



 

 
Headquarters North Bay Office East Bay Office 
150 Executive Park Blvd, Suite 4200 505 San Marin Drive, Suite A220 825 Washington Street, Suite 237 
San Francisco, CA 94134  Novato, CA 94945 Oakland, CA 94607 
Tel: (415) 534-7070 Tel: (415) 534-7070 Tel: (510) 937-2310 

 
WWW.FREYERLAURETA.COM 

October 20, 2022 
 
Mr. Sergio Ramirez 
General Manager 
West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, California 94025 
 
Re:      ON-CALL CONSTRUCTION CONSULTATION SERVICES 

BAYFRONT PARK SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 
Dear Mr. Ramirez, 
 
Thank you for your proposal request for on-call construction administration services for the Bayfront Park Sanitary 
Sewer Improvement Project.  We are pleased to present the following Scope of Professional Services and Fee 
Schedule.  
 
Description of Services 
 
Construction administration services will be provided to the District on an on-call basis for the subject project, to 
assist the District in obtaining construction work that is in substantial conformance with the project contract 
documents.  
 
Task 1. On-Call Construction Administration Services 
 
Our construction administration services will consist of the following: 
 

• Provide interpretation of contract documents to address contractor Requests for Information, assist in the 
preparation of change orders, review extra work requests, and review shop drawings and other contractor 
submittals. 

• Coordinate AutoCAD file transfer to Contractor if requested and as directed by the District. 

• Provide consultation and prepare drawings as needed to address and resolve pipeline conflicts during 
construction. 

• Coordinate construction with the City of Menlo Park, Caltrans, SVCW, and Cargill. 

• Prepare Record Drawings at the end of the project. 

• Attend meetings with the Contractor, as requested by the District. 

• Provide construction observation services on an as-needed, on-call basis. 

• Provide construction contract and contractor payment coordination. 

6-3



Mr. Sergio Ramirez 
Page 2 of 2 
October 20, 2022 

FREYER & LAURETA, INC. 

 
 
Proposed Fee 
 
All work will be on a time and materials (T&M) basis, not exceed the following limits without District authorization: 
 
On-Call Construction Administration Services $70,000 (budget) 
 
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity of submitting this proposal to you. We look forward to working with you on another 
successful project. If you have any questions, please feel free to call us.  

Very truly yours,  

FREYER & LAURETA, INC. 

 

  

Richard J. Laureta, P.E.  
Pres ident  

6-4



Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 

  

Subject: Consider Approving District Treasury Report  

 First Quarter FY 2022-23 

 

Background 

In October 2010 the District named Bank of the West as the District’s Investment advisor and 
approved an investment of $5 million in available funds to establish the Emergency Capital 
Reserve.  Subsequently, the Board has established several additional reserves to provide 
financial stability for the District.   
 
Excess funds over the current monthly expenditures are held in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF), which are equivalent to cash and may earn higher yields without a long term 
commitment.  Operating Reserves, customer deposits, current capital projects, and Solid 
Waste Funds are held in LAIF. 
 
Restricted funds for Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club (SHGCC), as required for the Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan are held in a Money Market account, as requested by 
SHGCC representatives. 
 
There are currently five separate investment reserves maintained to support the goals of the 

District, along with reserves held in LAIF, the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve held in a 
money market account, a Pension Trust, and the restricted Recycled Water SRF Reserve. 

Annual contributions are made in accordance with the Board approved budget in order to reach 
the target balances for each reserve. 

 

Reserve Account Originated Target Balance Target 

Operating Reserve 11/26/2014 $11 million *  Achieved 

Rate Stabilization Reserve  10/30/2015 $10 million Unfulfilled 

Treatment Plant Reserve 9/24/2021 $12 million Unfulfilled 

Capital Project Reserve 11/26/2014 $6 million Unfulfilled 

Emergency Capital Reserve 10/19/2010 $5 million Unfulfilled 

Recycled Water Cash Flow  11/18/2016               $8 million Unfulfilled 

Recycled Water SRF Reserve  3/01/2018 $1.46 million  Achieved 

Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 8/18/2011 $1 million  Achieved 

   

  *   Based on approved FY 2022-23 Budget, 6 months Operations $11,111,437 (held in LAIF)  

 
 

Fiscal Impact  
The District had $71,653,384 in cash and investments, including $2,106,689 in restricted 
accounts, as of September 30, 2022.   
 



Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 

The District allocated an additional $361,837 of LAIF funds for the Operating Reserve, as 
approved in the FY 2022-23 budget, to meet six months of expenditures.  Transfers of $3.6 
million approved in the FY 2022-23 Budget are not yet completed. 

 

FY 2022-23 Approved Budget Transfers

Operating Reserves 361,837$     

Treatment Plant Reserve 2,500,000

Rate Stabilization 300,000

Capital Project Reserve 200,000

Emergency Capital Reserve 200,000

Vehicle & Equip Replacement Reserve 389,881

Total Transfers 3,951,718$   
 
The District had total funds of approximately $15.4 million above the total $54 million target 
reserve balances, combining all District unrestricted accounts, as of September 30, 2022.  Four 
reserve accounts are under the individual targets by approximately $835 thousand, due to 
fluctuations in market values.  The goal is to achieve the new Treatment Plant Reserve $12 
million target in five years with contributions of $2.5 million per year beginning in FY 2021-22.   
 
The investment portfolios have been set up with the goal to yield a rate of return of 
approximately 2%.  Current District yields in the Investment Reserves average 1.87%.   
 
 

 
 
Details of each account are included on the following Schedule of Cash and Investments.  The 
Investment statements for the first quarter FY 2022-23 follow, including details of all holdings 
and activity. 
 
 

Recommendation 
The Finance Manager recommends the District Board approve the report on the District’s 
Treasury Report, including investment portfolio statements detailing assets held, transactions, 
and changes in market value to the Reserve accounts described therein, for the first quarter 
fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
 
Attachment:  Schedule of Cash and Investments, September 30, 2022 
   Investment Statements 1st Quarter FY 2022-23 

 



sergio.ramirez
Typewritten Text
10/19/2022

sergio.ramirez
Typewritten Text







































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Robert Scheidt, Assistant Operations Superintendent  

 

Subject: Consider Approving Purchase of a 2022 Ford Mach E to replace 

Vehicle Unit No. 201 assigned to the General Manager 

 
Background 

During the budget approval process the Board of Directors approved the replacement 
of vehicle unit number 201 assigned to the General Manager. At the time the Board of 
Directors approved leasing a Ford Mach E (electric vehicle) at a rate of $735.00 per 
month through the General Fund, Other Operational Expenses. Staff reserved a Ford 
Mach E in January of 2022 with a $100.00 deposit. The retail price for the 2022 Ford 
Mach E is $55,706.16. 
 
Analysis  

The estimate received from Ford Credit Municipal Finance’s leasing branch was 
$1,363.91 per month based on a 7.99% interest charged to the purchase price over a 
four year period. At the end of the four year term the District could purchase the vehicle 
for $1.00.  
 
Based on the interest rate charged to the purchase price the District would pay over 
$9,000.00 in interest over the four year term. The total purchase price of the 
replacement vehicle is $55,706.16 including tax. The District’s Vehicle Replacement 
Reserve has a balance of $1.2 million. 
 
Fiscal Impact  

The fiscal impact is $55,706.16, minus the $100.00, deposit to the Vehicle and 
Equipment Replacement Reserve.  

 

Recommendation 

The Assistant Operations Superintendent recommends the Board consider approving 
the purchase of a 2022 Ford Mach E to replace Vehicle Unit No. 201 and authorize the 
General Manager to used funds from the Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Reserve.  

 

Attachments:  Ford Credit Financing and Towne Ford Quotes 

8-1



8-2



8-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

8-4



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

  AGENDA ITEM 9 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 

 

Subject: Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon Heights 

Recycled Water Facility 

 
A discussion will be held on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility and other events 
related to the recycled water plant. The Board will have opportunity to provide direction to 
staff and legal counsel.  
 
 

Recycled Water Facility Production Data: 

2020 Treated Delivered 

August 8.8MG 8.2MG 

September 8.2MG 5.1MG 

October 7.4MG 4.5MG 

November  5MG 1.4MG 

December 4.7MG .55MG 

2021 Treated Delivered 

January 4.8MG .23MG 

February 4.4MG .13MG 

March 5.9MG 1.8MG 

April 8.5MG 7.6MG 

May 9.3.MG 8.2MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.5MG 9.1MG 

August 9.4MG 9.0MG 

September  9.1MG   6.9MG* 

October 7.6MG    2.6MG** 

November 5.2MG 0 

December  4.7MG 0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

9-1



 
 
 

2022 Treated Delivered 

January  4.4MG 97,000 gallons 

February 4.4MG 1.5MG 

March 6.6MG 3.5MG 

April  7.6MG 3.8MG 

May  9.2MG 7.4MG 

June 9.8MG 8.7MG 

July 9.6MG 8.1MG 

August  9.2MG 8.1MG 

September  8.6MG 6.7MG 
 
 
 

*  Sharon Heights substantially tapered off their water usage for September which is the reason for the large 
discrepancy between treated and delivered. 
** Treatment was reduced in the second half of the month. Rain in late October and an irrigation equipment 
malfunctions caused water delivery to decrease.  
 
 

The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or brochure prepared in 
whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water Project - Sharon Heights:  Funding for this project has been 
provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants from 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does mention of trade 
names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use. 

 
 
 

9-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

  AGENDA ITEM 10 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 

 

Subject: Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 

and Status Update 

 
A discussion will be held on the District’s Bayfront Recycled Water Projects and other 
events related to the recycled water projects including financing, environmental review, 
design/build issues and grant applications.  
 
The Board will have opportunity to provide direction to staff and general counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

10-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

10-2



            WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 11 
 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management 

Authority (SBWMA) 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
President Fran Dehn, will report on any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

11-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

11-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 AGENDA ITEM 12 

 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, General Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) 

Plant 

 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), Commissioner 
George Otte, will report on pertinent items regarding SVCW Operations, CIP and 
Finance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2022 
 

12-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

12-2


	Agenda Oct. 26, 2022 
	3A - Minutes Oct. 12, 2022
	4 - General Manager’s Report
	5 - Consideration to Award Bayfront Park Sanitary SewerImprovement Project to Ranger Pipelines Incorporated
	6 - Consider Approving Proposal and Authorize the GeneralManager to Enter Into an Agreement for On-Call ConstructionConsultation Services with Freyer & Laureta, Inc. (F&L) for theBayfront Park Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project
	7 - Consider Approving District Treasury ReportFirst Quarter FY 2022-23
	8 - Consider Approving Purchase of a 2022 Ford Mach E to replaceVehicle Unit No. 201 assigned to the General Manager
	9 - Discussion and Direction on the West Bay and Sharon HeightsRecycled Water Facility
	10 - Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Projectand Status Update
	11 - Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste ManagementAuthority (SBWMA)
	12 - Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW)Plant



